(Translation)

Ocean Glass Public Company Limited Minutes of the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders No. 39

The Annual General Meeting of Shareholders No. 39 was held on April 26, 2018, at Ballroom, 4th Floor, Pullman Bangkok Grande Sukhumvit Hotel, No. 30 Sukhumvit 21 (Asoke) Road, Klongtoey Nua Sub-District, Wattana District, Bangkok 10110.

Directors present

1.	Mr. Chakri Chanruangvanich	Chairman of the Board of Directors and Member of Nomination and Remuneration Committee ("NRC")
2.	Mr. Kirati Assakul	Director
3.	Mr. Woragan Xuto	Independent Director and Chairman of the Audit Committee
4.	Mr. Chatchawin Charoen-Rajapark	Independent Director, Chairman of the NRC and Member of the Audit Committee
5.	Mr. Chaipranin Visudhipol	Independent Director and Member of the Audit Committee
6.	Mr. Tatchapol Poshyanonda	Independent Director and Member of the Audit Committee
7.	Mr. Naputt Assakul	Director and Member of the NRC
8.	Ms. Jariya Sangchaiya	Managing Director

Directors Absent

1. Mr. Matthew Kichodhan Independent Director

Management present

1.	Mr. Uday Verma	Executive Director - Customer and Channel Development
2.	Mr. Sathien Srisaikham	Executive Director – Accounting, Finance and Information Technology
3.	Ms. Yada Andaris	Executive Director - Human Resources

Auditor from PricewaterhouseCoopers ABAS Company Limited

1. Ms. Thanyaporn Tangthanopajai The Company's auditor for the year 2017

Independent legal counsel from Apisith & Alliance Ltd.

1. Mrs. Siriwasar Suwanjesda

Atmosphere before the meeting

The Company arranged a place in the meeting room to display the Company's products and show videos of three brands: Ocean, Ocean Professional and Lucaris which targeted different groups of customers to shareholders.

Commencement of the Meeting

The meeting started at 2.00 p.m.

Mr. Chakri Chanruangvanich, Chairman of the Board of Directors presided as the Chairman of the Meeting. The Chairman welcomed all attending shareholders, and introduced all Directors, executives, the Company's auditor and legal counsel to the meeting. The Chairman informed the meeting

Mr. Matthew Kichodhan was unable to attend the meeting because of unexpected incident during the trip from other province back to Bangkok. In addition, the Chairman introduced the new director of the Company, namely, Ms. Jariya Sangchaiya, Managing Director, who was appointed to be director under the resolution of the Board of Director's meeting No. 3/2018 held on March 21, 2018, to replace Mr. Silparat Watthanakasetr who had resigned from the Board of Director before his office term expiring on October 1, 2017. Therefore, in this AGM No. 39, there are 9 directors in the Board of Directors.

The Chairman then introduced the work experience of Ms. Jariya Sangchaiya to the meeting. That, Ms. Jariya Sangchaiya has extensive experience and expertise in glassware industry. She joined the Company in a position of Executive Director-Manufacturing from 2013 to 2016. Later in 2017 to 2018, the Company prepared the management succession plan of which Ms. Jariya Sangchaiya has been elected as the Deputy Managing Director and Acting Managing Director.

The Chairman informed the meeting that the Articles of Association ("AOA") of the Company stipulated that there shall be shareholders and proxies present at the meeting of not less than 25 persons which representing not less than one third of the total number of issued shares being offered to constitute a quorum. At this moment, there were 37 shareholders present in person and 30 proxies of shareholders, totaling 67 shareholders and proxies, holding altogether 14,306,944 shares, representing 67.07 per cent of the total 21,330,715 issued and offered shares, attending this meeting. The quorum was thus constituted in accordance with Article 36 of the Company's AOA. The Chairman therefore declared the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders No. 38 duly convened.

The Chairman invited Ms. Suwan Udomchalermdech, proxy of Ms. Nussara Banyatpiyapodj, a shareholder to act as the witness for the vote counting. Then, the Chairman assigned Mrs. Rakdee Pakdeechumpol as Secretary of the Meeting to inform the meeting of the voting procedures. Mrs. Rakdee Pakdeechumpol informed the meeting that the Company values the equal rights among the shareholders by giving opportunity to shareholders to propose any meeting agenda for this Annual General Meeting or potential candidates as directors including any further inquiries, by announcing through the Stock Exchange of Thailand's and the Company's websites starting from December 8, 2017 until January 8, 2018. However, since there were neither particular proposal of meeting agendas nor proposal of candidates as directors made for this meeting within the given period, the agenda and the proposed candidates were approved based on the Board of Directors' resolution as stipulated in the notice of the meeting.

For the accuracy of voting, the Secretary of the Meeting informed the meeting of the voting procedures to shareholders and proxies of shareholders. That, following the registration at the registration points, the shareholders would receive the voting ballots and it is deemed that your registration is completed. The voting ballots comprise of a confirmation of registration card and ballots for voting of every agenda on which the shareholder or proxy should affix his signature and hand over the tear-off tab to the staffs at the registration point, and the last part would be a registration card for factory visit. The factory visit was scheduled on June 1, 2018 and the number of visitors is limited to 50 shareholders.

For the accuracy of voting, the shareholders or proxies, except custodian, should mark the sign in any one of 'approve', 'disapprove' and 'abstain' selecting boxes. If the shareholders or proxies mark the

sign in more than one boxes or cast their votes more than the voting right they are entitled to, or the ballot is crossed out without signature, such ballot is void.

As for the voting procedures, the Chairman would ask the meeting during the voting of each agenda whether there are any shareholders voting in 'disapprove' or 'abstain' in such agenda. If there are no shareholders voting 'disapprove' or 'abstain', then the shareholders are assumed to be 'approve' the resolution or unanimously approve in accordance with the submitted resolution. If the shareholders choose to vote "disapprove" or 'abstain' in the ballot then they shall raise their hand so that the staff of the Company can collect the aforementioned ballot and process the voting result. However, except for Agendas 5 connection with the election of directors, the Company's staff would collect ballot from every shareholder, whether the shareholders vote in 'approve', 'disapprove' or 'abstain'.

As for the vote counting, the Company would deduct votes in 'disapprove' and 'abstain' from the total votes of shareholders present in the meeting and the remaining votes deem as votes in 'approve'.

For the proxies who vote for and on behalf of the shareholders, the Company had already recorded the votes which reflect intention of the shareholders in the agenda.

If any shareholders or their proxies would like to ask any questions in any agenda, those questions are to be asked during the Q&A session of each agenda or during the last session of the meeting. Before asking the questions, the shareholders would introduce themselves by giving their name and last name so that the Company could indicate the shareholders' names in the minutes of this meeting.

In voting, the following requirements prescribed in the Company's AOA must be complied:

- 1. Any shareholder who has a vested interest in any matter shall not be entitled to vote on such matter, except for voting on the election of directors.
- 2. Unless otherwise prescribed by these Articles, in voting, each shareholder shall have votes equal to the number of shares he holds. One share is entitled to one vote.
- 3. Voting shall be made openly, unless at least 5 shareholders request a secret vote and the meeting resolves accordingly. The method for the secret vote shall be stipulated by the chairman of the meeting.

Unless otherwise prescribed by the Company's AOA, a resolution of the meeting of shareholders shall be made according to the following votes:

- 1. In a normal case, by the majority votes of the shareholders present in the meeting and who are entitled to vote. In case of a tie, the chairman of the meeting shall have the casting vote; and
- 2. In amending the Company's Memorandum of Association or AOA, by votes not less than 3/4 of the total votes of the shareholders present in the meeting and are entitled to vote.

For the election of directors, the meeting shall comply with the following rules and procedures:

- 1. Each shareholder shall have votes equal to the number of shares he holds. One share equals to one vote.
- 2. A shareholder may vote for one director or multiple directors. However, the voting must not exceed the number of directors to be elected at the meeting.
- 3. In the case that the shareholder votes for more than 1 director, the shareholder may vote for each director equally to the number of shares he holds. The shareholder shall not allot his votes to any person in any number.
- 4. The persons who receive highest votes arranged in order from higher to lower in a number equal to that of directors to be appointed are the elected directors of the Company. In the

event of a tie at a lower place which would make the number of directors greater than that required, the chairman of the meeting shall have a casting vote to acquire the number of directors that required in the election.

The Chairman proposed that the meeting considered the following agenda items:

Agenda 1 To certify the minutes of the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders No. 38 held on April 25, 2017

The Chairman proposed that the meeting certify the minutes of the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders No. 38 which was held on April 25, 2017. The copies of such minutes had been submitted to Department of Business Development, Ministry of Commerce, and the Stock Exchange of Thailand within the time limit stipulated by the laws, and had been posted on the Company's website since May 9, 2017. In addition, the copies of the minutes had also been delivered to the shareholders together with the notice of this meeting.

No shareholders objected or requested that minutes be amended otherwise.

Resolution: The minutes of Annual General Meeting No. 38 be certified as accurate minutes with the majority votes of the total votes of shareholders attending the meeting and entitled to votes as follows:

During the meeting, there were 2 additional shareholders representing 2,601 shares attending the meeting. The total number of persons attending the meeting was 69 persons, holding altogether 14,309,545 shares, equivalent to 67.0842% of the total issued and offered shares of the Company.

-	Approved	14,305,545	votes, equivalent to	99.9720%
-	Disapproved	0	votes, equivalent to	0.0000%
-	Abstained	4,000	votes, equivalent to	0.0280%
-	Void Ballot	0	votes, equivalent to	0.0000%

Agenda 2 To acknowledge the Company's operating performance for the year 2017

The Chairman assigned Ms. Jariya Sangchaiya, Managing Director to report to the meeting on behalf of the Board of Directors the overview of the Company's operating performance for the year 2017. Details are as shown in the Company's Annual Report 2017, which had been delivered to the shareholders together with the notice of this meeting in CD-ROM format.

Ms. Jariya Sangchaiya stated that the Company's business was guided by its vision which was: "Ocean Glass shall be the world class market leader through business innovation, corporate values, and operational excellence, while consistently satisfying customers and achieving business growth and profitability." The Company's mission was: "Provide life's pleasures with quality glassware". The Company's strategies and corporate goals were developed in alignment with and in pursuit of the said vision and mission.

Highlights of the Company's 2017 operating performance were as follows:

The year 2017 marked another successful year for Ocean Glass Public Company Limited. The Company achieved its sales growth amidst the price and design competition in both the domestic and international glassware markets. The Company had consolidated sales in amount of 2,148 million, increased by Baht 108 million or equivalent to 5.3% as compared with the previous year consolidated sales. The Company's proportion of international sales was 75.0% and domestic sales was 25.0%.

For the previous year, the business operation of the Company has faced the challenging factors, whether they be economic factors which led to Baht appreciation against other main currencies and

consequently impacted the exportation of the products whereas the importers were able to import products for sale in competitive price. In addition, the cost of energy was higher than last year. As a result, the Company's gross profit margin in 2017 was 34.4%, decreasing from those of 2016 which was reported at 39.1%. The main causes are the appreciation of Baht currency against USD currency, at the average appreciation rate of 4%, and the increment of energy cost by 33% comparing to the energy cost of the previous year.

The proportions of sales from the 3 customer segments were as follows:

- 1. Food Service segment (or customer that runs beverage and food service business such as hotel and restaurant): 41%
- 2. Retail segment: 36%
- 3. B2B segment (or customers that are companies, shops or governmental agencies): 23.0%

Marketing and Brand Development

In the previous year, the Company continued to maintain its competitiveness by expanding its distribution channels, restructuring the sales model for its major markets as well as developing new products that matched customers' needs and lifestyles.

In 2017, the Company launched the New Year gift set product "Magic Moment", which was codesigned with a leading lifestyle product manufacturer, this product achieved and increased the Company's sales revenue approximately 12% as compared with the sales revenue of the New Year gift set product of 2016.

For the product under the Brand "Ocean Professional" which targeted hotel and restaurant customers, the Company arranged the workshops in Phuket and Hua Hin by providing advice to the customers and collaborated with leading coffee product entrepreneurs to present beverage product in collaboration with the Company's products. Further to the above, the Company has continued to focus on the development of new product design to meet customers' demand by launching the new products to the market, i.e. "Santë Collection" which received good response from customers. This new collection was developed to replace "Madison" the wine glass collection.

For the product under Brand "Lucaris", the Company organized the Wine Master Class activity to instruct the customers about Lucaris wine glass in "Desire" collection at Shanghai, China and Delhi, India. The Wine Master Class activity was co-hosted with the five star hotel group and had Mr. Nelson Chow, the Chairman of Sommelier Association of Hong Kong, Taiwan and China, conducted the activity. In addition, the Company was the official sponsor of crystal glassware for international wine and food events, e.g., the Hotelier Awards Asia, F&B Conclave in India, the First Chaîne des Rôtisseurs Jeunes Sommeliers Competition 2017 in Thailand and Globe in a Glass in India. Moreover, the Company has conducted online marketing through online media, such as Facebook, Instagram, Weibo and WeChat.

In November 2017, Lucaris' Desire collection was granted the China Good Design Award 2017 in China and iF Design Award 2018 in January 2018 in Germany. Both awards are honorable awards for product design and are globally accepted.

Production Process

In the previous year, the Company has been certified for the quality management system pursuant to ISO9001:2015 standard and improved the warehouses in order to increase efficiency in warehouse management. Besides, the Company has continued to undertake environment and energy conservation projects, for example, the change of the High bay light bulb to LED High bay light bulb.

Corporate Governance

Mr. Chakri Chanruangvanich informed the meeting that, for the corporate governance, the Company had established the Corporate Governance Policy based on the Stock Exchange of Thailand's Principle of Good Corporate Governance for Listed Companies. The policy provided the Board of Directors, executives and employees with a framework that enabled businesses to be conducted with integrity and in compliance with applicable rules and regulations for the benefit of the Company and shareholders.

In 2017, the Company was rated 'Very Good' under the Good Corporate Governance of Thai Listed Companies Project arranged by the Thai Institute of Directors and received full 100 scores in AGM 2017 assessment program held by Thai Investors Association. In addition, the Company was awarded the ESG 100 Certificate for the year 2017 by Thaipat Institute for its exemplary dedication to the environment, society, and good corporate governance. For the anti-corruption, on November 21, 2017, the Company has received CAC Certification from Thailand's Private Sector Collective Action Coalition Against Corruption (CAC) from the Thai Institute of Directors for which the Company determined to prepared the Anti-corruption policy to be consistent with the principle of Corporate Governance and Business Code of Conduct for being the practical guideline for all levels of employees in performing their duties with integrity and honesty. In addition, the Company has arranged whistle blow channel for stakeholders to receive the complaint and to report the clue corruption and also determined the protection measure of complainer and clue informant.

Social Development

The Company initiated activities for the stakeholders by supporting social projects every year, as follows:

- Charity Activity held for students of Wat Ratniyomtham School, Sumut Prakarn Province.
- Annual tuition grant program for employees' children.
- Sandalwood Flowers Project in which the Company's employees made 10,000 sandalwood flowers to distribute to the people who attend the Royal Cremation Ceremony of HM the late King Rama IX.

The Chairman invited the shareholders to ask questions or make inquiries about the operating performance for the year 2017. Questions raised by shareholders were as detailed below:

Mr. Sutham Teerawattanachai, a shareholder, inquired that

1. According to the Company's report, the Company had the gross profit margin in 2017 at 34.4%, decreased from the gross profit margin in 2016 by 39.1%. It appears that the difference between the gross profit margins in 2016 and 2017 is approximately 4.7% and the Company clarified that this is the result from the exchange currency factor approximately 4.0%. The shareholder understands that such difference was partly impacted by the exchange currency which consequently caused the decrease of gross profit margin; and in terms of energy cost, the shareholder understands that the energy cost was reported at approximately Baht 280 million in 2016 and at Baht 330 million in 2017, which was increased in the amount of approximately Baht 50 million, is it correct?

Ms Jariya Sangchaiya answered that the shareholder's understanding is correct.

- 2. Queries related to the Company's products, which can be summarized as follows:
 - 2.1 The products of the Company can be divided into 3 groups: Food Service, Retail and B2B. Based on information provided in the Company's annual report, the sales

volume of B2B products considerably decreased and the shareholder understands that the B2B group makes good profit for the Company, is it correct?

<u>Mr. Sathien Srisaikham</u> responded to the shareholder that the B2B group is the customers who absorb the Company's excess capacity. Therefore, the profit from selling products to the B2B group will not be high.

- 2.2 Which is the type of products that has hotels' names printed on and does this product make good profit?
 - Mr. Sathien Srisaikham explained to the shareholder that this type of sale is considered as a Direct Sale which is categorized as B2B product, and makes good profit.
- 2.3 If the B2B products do not make high profit, whether it is good for the company to have less sales volume of the B2B products?
 - Mr. Sathien Srisaikham responded to the shareholder that in the event that the Company has excess capacity which causes temporary shutdown expense. Having the B2B customers to absorb such excess capacity is good for the Company even though it will not cause high profit from selling.
- 2.4 When the sales volume of the B2B products decreases, it means that the Company can sell other types of product better, is it correct?
 - Mr. Sathien Srisaikham answered that the shareholder's understanding is correct.
- 3. The shareholder understands that the Company has been granted the China Good Design Award at the end of last year. Is it correct that the Company has just been granted the iF Design Award recently? And do both awards are well known and internationally accepted?

<u>Ms Jariya Sangchaiya</u> responded to the shareholder that the Company has just been granted iF Design Award in early 2018. The China Good Award and the iF Design Award are the internationally accepted awards in design innovation and the Company has used both awards for promoting the Company's products.

Resolution: The Company's operating performance for the year 2017 was acknowledged.

Agenda 3 To approve the statements of financial position, the statements of comprehensive income, and the auditor's report for the year ended December 31, 2017

The Chairman assigned Mr. Sathien Srisaikham, Executive Director of Accounting, Finance and Information Technology, to report to the meeting the financial statements of the Company which consists of the statement of financial position and the statement of comprehensive income for the year ended December 31, 2017, which had been audited by the Certified Public Accountant and approved by the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors. Such financial statements were delivered to all shareholders together with the notice of this meeting and were as summarized below:

The statements of financial position As at December 31

Items	2017 (Baht Million)	2016 (Baht Million)
Current Assets	1,230.25	1,360.25
Non-Current Assets	1,822.28	1,665.63
Total Assets	3,052.53	3,025.88
Current Liabilities	644.10	641.96
Non-Current Liabilities	525.59	689.26
Total Liabilities	1,169.69	1,331.22
Shareholders' Equity	1,882.84	1,694.66
Total Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity	3,052.53	3,025.88

As of December 31, 2017, the Company's total assets were Baht 3,053 million, increased by Baht 27 million or equivalent to 0.88% YOY due to:

- The increase of cash and cash equivalents by Baht 2 million or 2.4% as a result from the repayment of short-term and long-term bank loans from operating cash inflow, and the interim dividend payment.
- The decrease of inventory by Baht 121 million or 12.2% due to the increment of sales volume during the year and the inventory management policy.
- The decrease of VAT receivables amounted Baht 17 million or 37.1% due to the receipt the VAT refund from the Revenue Department during the year.
- The increase of the net property, plant and equipment amounted Baht 152 million or 9.3% primarily because of the Company's recording of fair value on land evaluated by independent appraiser during the year.

The Company's total liabilities were Baht 1,170 million, decreased by Baht 162 million primarily due to the repayment of short-term and long-term bank loans. The shareholders' equity stood at Baht 1,883 million, increased by Baht 188 million YOY primarily due to the recognition of gain on land revaluation and net profit for the year net of dividend payment during the year.

Statements of Comprehensive Income As at December 31

Statements of Comprehensive Income	2017 (Baht Million)	2016 (Baht Million)
Sales	2,147.64	2,040.36
Foreign exchange gain (loss)	7.63	8.93
Other income	11.42	5.66
Total revenues	<u>2,166.69</u>	<u>2,054.95</u>
Cost of goods sold	1,408.20	1,242.63
Temporary shutdown expenses	159.15	173.27
Selling expenses	385.33	393.74
Administrative expenses	106.36	100.90

Statements of Comprehensive Income	2017 (Baht Million)	2016 (Baht Million)
Finance costs	24.07	32.62
Total expenses	<u>2,083.11</u>	<u>1,943.16</u>
Profit before income tax expense	83.58	111.79
Income tax expense	17.60	17.22
Profit for the year	<u>65.98</u>	94.57
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax	169.56	0.77
Total comprehensive income for the year	235.54	95.34
Basic earnings per share (Baht)	3.09	4.43

- The Company and its subsidiaries had consolidated sales of Baht 2,148 million, increased by 5.3% YOY due to the sales growth in ASEAN region, such as Thailand and Vietnam, and in South Asia, such as India.
- The Company's gross profit margin was 34.4.1%, decreased from the last year which was reported at 39.1%. The decrease was mainly from price competition in the glassware market and the increment of energy cost as compared to the previous year.

Expenses

The Company's temporary shutdown expenses amounted to Baht 159 million, decreased by Baht 14 million or 8.2% by YOY. The purpose of the Company's temporary shutdown was to manage and balance the inventory with the sales volume as well as to repair and maintain the furnaces. The Company's selling expenses were reported at Baht 385 million, decreased by Baht 8 million YOY mainly from the control of the sales and marketing expenses.

The administrative expenses were Baht 106 million, increased by Baht 5 million due to increasing the employee expense and write off obsolete inventories during the year.

The Company's finance costs totaled Baht 24 million, decreased by Baht 9 million as a result of the repayment of the long-term loans and stream of operating cash inflow during the period which lessened the Company's reliance on lesser interest expenses.

Amid the intensifying competition in the glassware market and the appreciation of Baht currency against USD currency as well as the increasing energy cost, the Company controlled the administrative expenses in accordance with its plan and reported the net profit of Baht 66 million, a decrease of Baht 29 million YOY, earning per share is Baht 3.03.

The Company reported the earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortization (EBITDA) of Baht 271 million, decreased by Baht 38 million YOY.

The analysis of key financial ratios revealed that the Company's liquidity was good and at a similar level as last year. The Company had sufficient ability to fulfill its interest payment and other financial obligations. Moreover, the Company's debt-to-equity ratio met the financial covenants applicable to long-term loans granted by domestic financial institutions.

The Chairman invited the shareholders to ask questions about the financial statements mentioned above.

1. Mr. Sutham Theerawattanachai, a shareholder enquired:

1.1 Due to the appreciation of Baht currency against the USD currency, the shareholder would like to know the ratio of the sales volume of the Company in USD currency to the total sales volume?

<u>Mr. Sathien Srisaikham</u> answered the shareholder that the Company has the sales revenue in USD currency around 50-60% of the total sales volume, however it depends on sales volume of each year.

1.2 The shareholder acknowledged that the Company has entered into the Forex Contract, if it has, what is the percentage from the total sales volume.

<u>Mr. Sathien Srisaikham</u> responded to the shareholder that the Company has used the ratio around 50% of the Net Exposure after Natural Hedge.

2. <u>Mr. Waiwit Poonjiradechama</u>, a shareholder enquired:

2.1 Would the energy cost in 2018 be higher than 2017 because of the increasing oil price?

Ms Jariya Sangchaiya informed the shareholder the oil price in 2018 tends to be higher. The oil price therefore will absolutely impact the energy cost in 2018 to be higher than 2017. However, this factor has been forecasted in the annual budget plan of the Company. For the beginning of this year, the Company faced an approximate average impact from the energy price, particularly in natural gas, at the rate of 4%.

2.2 In 2017, the repair cost increased by more than Baht 20 million, please clarify.

Ms. Jariya Sangchaiya clarified that the increase of repair cost by approximately Baht 20 million in 2017 was mostly incurred from the manufacturing activities. In glassware manufacturing, a machine called "Cold Cut" with laser cutting head is required in the process. This machine's approximate useful life is 3 years and there were 2 machines of which the useful life was expired in the past year. As a result, it caused an approximate repair cost of Baht 6 million. In addition, the Company undertook partial repair maintenance works on furnace A (Hot Repair Furnace A) by repairing the throat in order to prevent the leakage of molten glass. If there is a molten glass' leakage it may lead to accident, and any unplanned or unforeseen accident can cause major impact to the Company. The reparation cost was approximately Baht 5 Million. Also, the Company undertook the repair of the machines for crystal production as the machines had productivity in 2017 higher than those in 2016. The reparation and maintenance of such machines need high-priced equipment and parts. In this regard, when machine runs with higher productivity; the cost for its reparation and maintenance will relatively be higher as well, which is a common situation that occurs in manufacturing industry.

2.3 The other expenses which increased by more than Baht 61 million consist of what expenses, please clarify.

Mr. Sathien Srisaikham clarified that based on the financial report as shown in the annual report of the Company, the Company categorized these expenses in other manner. The Company reported the other expenses in 2017 at Baht 281 Million and in 2016 at Baht 220 million, increased by Baht 61 million, partly occurred from the change of business operation in China, that is, the company has undertaken the marketing by themselves. The expenses therefore consist of the following.

- Cost for supply chain and logistic, approximately Baht 30 Million; and
- Cost for personnel in China, approximately Baht 4 Million.

For the operation cost in Thailand, it consists of the following.

- Cost for write off the obsolescence of raw material and finished products, approximately Baht 10 Million;
- Cost for domestic transportation, approximately Baht 7 Million; and
- Miscellaneous cost in manufacturing factory, approximately Baht 10 Million.
- 2.4 What is the company's plan to increase profit of 2018?

Ms. Jariya Sangchaiya explained to the shareholder that upon the Company seeing the forecast of Baht currency's appreciation, the company will consider the channel to operating the business with the less impact, which is focusing on the domestic marketing. As seen from the sales volume in 2017 YOY, it appears that the domestic sales volume decreased and the Company has planned to increase the sales volume in 2017 to be equivalent or above the sales volume in 2016.

For the international market, the Company has planned to expand its products to new markets by considering competition and pricing factors, which should be consistent with the currency fluctuation of the Country where the Company intends to access the market. In this regard, Mr. Uday Verma has prepared a plan and is currently undertakes market exploration. For the expenses, the company continues to consider and control expenditure in order to comply with the Company's budget.

- **Mr. Sutham Theerawattanachai**, a shareholder inquired:
 - 3.1 How much is the expense related to the cold repair of Furnace A which will take place in 2018?
 - <u>Ms Jariya Sangchaiya</u> answered the shareholder that the Company has set the capital expenditure at Baht 130 Million.
 - 3.2 Does the Company has plan to write off the expenditure within 5-6 years and Does the Company has any one-time write off?
 - Mr. Sathien Srisaikham clarified that the write off will depend on the equipment that has been changed. In case of structural asset which has the useful life for 10 years, the company will write off the expense for 10 years. But for the asset which has the useful life for 5 years, the company will write off the expense for 5 years. However, it is very rare occasion to write off the expense for one time, this will happen when an asset was acquired during the previous accounting period and had the Minor Hot Repair, and thus it is required to write off in one time.
- **Mrs. Rattana Tansakul**, a right protection volunteer, Thai Investors Association inquired about the shutdown expenses, that in 2017, such expenses decreased from 2016 but the amount is still high. Does the Company has solution or management plan to reduce these expenses?
 - Mr. Sathien Srisaikham clarified to the shareholder regarding the production cost that the shutdown cost is an estimation of ideal capacity of machine in theoretical terms. While in practice, the Company has several kinds of machine to support the production of various glassware products but these machines will not run in the same time. As such, the fixed cost

of each machine will be recorded as shutdown expenses to manage the excess inventory of the Company to not be too high.

Ms. Jariya Sangchaiya added that, for the solution to manage the expense in order to decrease the shutdown cost, the Company has to increase the sales volume by expanding its distribution channels to potential and competitive markets and the Company will enhance the brands' strength in accordance with the Company's plan.

Resolution: The statements of financial position, the statements of comprehensive income, and the auditor's report for the year ended December 31, 2017 were approved by the majority votes of total votes of shareholders attending the meeting and entitled to vote according to the number of votes listed below.

During the meeting, there were 8 additional shareholders representing 4,810 shares attending the meeting. The total number of persons attending the meeting was 77 persons, holding altogether 14,314,355 shares, equivalent to 67.1068% of the total issued and offered shares of the Company.

-	Approved	14,310,355	votes, equivalent to	99.9721%
-	Disapproved	0	votes, equivalent to	0.0000%
-	Abstained	4,000	votes, equivalent to	0.0279%
-	Void Ballot	0	votes, equivalent to	0.0000%

$\underline{\mathbf{Agenda}}\ \mathbf{4}$ To approve the allocation of net profit and dividend payment from operating results of the year 2017

The Chairman informed the meeting that, in 2017, the Company presented a net profit of Baht 65,978,762.79 or Baht 3.09 per share. The Company's retained earnings appropriated for legal reserve totaled Baht 50 million which was not less than 10% of the registered capital in accordance with Section 116 of the Public Limited Company Act B.E. 2535 (1992) and Article 46 of the Company's AOA. Thus, the Company was not required to allocate its net profit as legal reserve.

Therefore, the Company could pay dividends to shareholders pursuant to Section 115 of the Public Companies Act B.E. 2535 (1992) and Article 45 of the Company's AOA which prohibited the payment of dividends from other funds than profit whereby the Company was not allowed to pay dividends if its sustained accumulated loss. The dividends shall be equally distributed to every share based on the number of total shares.

In considering the dividend payment, the Company took into account the financial results and the return on equity on long-term basis. Therefore, the Board of Directors resolved to propose that the meeting approve the dividend payment from the operating results of the year 2017 to the holders of ordinary shares at the rate of Baht 1.55 per share or equivalent to 50% of net profit per share, or Baht 33,062,608.25 in total. The Board of Directors opined that the proposed rate of dividend payment was appropriate and in accordance with the policy of the Company. Furthermore, the Company's capital would remain solid and sufficient to support its future growth and business expansion.

The Board of Directors set the record date for the shareholders who are entitled to receive dividend payment on March 8, 2018. The dividend payment date was scheduled on May 18, 2018. The Chairman invited the shareholders to ask questions about the dividend payment. There were no questions raised by the shareholders.

The Chairman proposed that the meeting approve the dividend payment at the rate of Baht 1.55 per share as proposed by the Board of Directors.

Resolution: The allocation of net profit and dividend payment from operating results of the year 2017 at the rate of Baht 1.55 per share was approved as proposed by the Board of Directors with the majority votes of total votes of shareholders attending the meeting and entitled to votes as follows:

-	Approved	14,311,355	votes, equivalent to	99.9790%
-	Disapproved	0	votes, equivalent to	0.0000%
-	Abstained	3,000	votes, equivalent to	0.0210%
_	Void Ballot	0	votes, equivalent to	0.0000%

Agenda 5 To elect the directors to succeed those retiring by rotation

The Chairman informed the meeting that according to Article 23 of the Company's AOA, at every annual general meeting of shareholders, one-third of the directors of the Company shall retire by rotation and the directors who so retired were entitled to be re-elected. At the AGM No. 39, the directors who retired by rotation were:

1)	Mr. Kirati Assakul	Director
2)	Mr. Chatchawin Charoen-Rajapark	Independent Director / Member of the Audit Committee / Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
3)	Mr. Tatchapol Poshyanonda	Independent Director / Member of the Audit Committee

To comply with the Good Corporate Governance Policy in respect of the equitable treatment of shareholders, the Company offered the shareholders an opportunity to nominate qualified candidates for the director election from December 8, 2017 to January 8, 2018. However, there were no nominations of candidates by the shareholders during the given period.

After due consideration, the Board of Directors was of the opinion that the 3 directors named above had efficiently performed their duties as director and given valuable advice to the Company throughout their directorship. The qualifications of the 3 directors were in accordance with the requirements under the Public Limited Companies Act and they did not possess any prohibited characteristics disqualifying them from serving as director/independent director as prescribed by regulations of the Office of Securities and Exchange Commission and other relevant requirements. Thus, the Board of Directors deemed it was appropriate to nominate these 3 directors for re-election by the AGM No. 39 as directors of the Company for another term. The biographies and achievements of the three directors were attached to the notice of this meeting.

For transparency, the retired directors temporarily left the meeting room during this agenda so that the meeting could freely consider or discuss this matter with other directors.

The Chairman invited the shareholders to ask questions about the election of directors to replace the directors who retired by rotation in 2018. There were no questions raised by the shareholders.

The Chairman asked the meeting to consider the election of 1) Mr. Kirati Assakul, 2) Mr. Chatchawin Charoen-Rajapark, and 3) Mr. Tachapol Poshyanonda as directors for another term.

Resolution: The election of the aforementioned directors on an individual basis as the Company's directors for another term as proposed by the Board of Directors was approved as follows:

1) Mr. Kirati Assakul, Director

The meeting resolved to approve the election of Mr. Kirati Assakul with the majority votes of total votes of shareholders attending the meeting and entitled to vote as follows:

During the meeting, there were 4 additional shareholders representing 1,180 shares attending the meeting. The total number of persons attending the meeting was 81 persons, holding altogether 14,315,535 shares, equivalent to 67.1123% of the total issued and offered shares of the Company.

-	Approved	14,312,535	votes, equivalent to	99.9790%
-	Disapproved	0	votes, equivalent to	0.0000%
-	Abstained	3,000	votes, equivalent to	0.0210%
-	Void Ballot	0	votes, equivalent to	0.0000%

2) **Mr. Chatchawin Charoen-Rajapark**, Independent Director, Member of the Audit Committee and Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration / Committee

During the meeting, there is 1 additional shareholder representing 10 shares attending the meeting. The total number of persons attending the meeting was 82 persons, holding altogether 14,315,545 shares, equivalent to 67.1124% of the total issued and offered shares of the Company.

The meeting resolved to approve the election of Mr. Chatchawin Charoen-Rajapark with the majority votes of total votes of shareholders attending the meeting and entitled to vote as follows:

-	Approved	14,312,445	votes, equivalent to	99.9783%
-	Disapproved	100	votes, equivalent to	0.0007%
-	Abstained	3,000	votes, equivalent to	0.0210%
-	Void Ballot	0	votes, equivalent to	0.0000%

3) Mr. Tachapol Poshyanonda, Independent Director / Member of the Audit Committee

During the meeting, there are 3 additional shareholders representing 220 shares attending the meeting. The total number of persons attending the meeting was 85 persons, holding altogether 14,315,765 shares, equivalent to 67.1134% of the total issued and offered shares of the Company.

The meeting resolved to approve the election of Mr. Tachapol Poshyanonda with the majority votes of total votes of shareholders attending the meeting and entitled to vote as follows:

-	Approved	14,312,665	votes, equivalent to	99.9783%
-	Disapproved	100	votes, equivalent to	0.0007%
-	Abstained	3,000	votes, equivalent to	0.0210%
-	Void Ballot	0	votes, equivalent to	0.0000%

The Chairman invited and welcomed all re-elected directors back to the meeting room and thanked the shareholders.

<u>Agenda 6</u> To fix the remuneration of Directors, the Audit Committee members, and the Nomination and Remuneration Committee members for the year 2018

The Chairman assigned Mr. Chatchawin Charoen-Rajapark, Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, to present to the meeting on behalf of the Board of Directors that Article 20 of the Company's AOA specified that "The directors are entitled to the remuneration, namely salary, meeting allowance, allowance and bonus." The remuneration of the directors should be commensurate with their duties and responsibilities as directors, comparable to directors' remuneration of other listed companies of similar size, and reviewed annually.

Due to the fact that the current remunerations of directors, the Audit Committee and the Nomination and Remuneration Committee are the same rate which was approved since the year 2015 for 3 years consecutively. Having considered their duties and responsibilities, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee has reviewed and therefore proposed the new rate of remunerations for the year 2018, as follows:

1) <u>Monthly Remuneration</u> The Nomination and Remuneration Committee proposed the new rate of monthly remuneration for the year 2018, as follows:

	Year 2018 (New Rate) Baht/month/person	Year 2017 (Current Rate since 2015) Baht/month/person	Increase by
Board of Directors			
Chairman of the Board of Directors	81,000	72,000	12.5%
Director	45,000	40,000	12.5%
Audit Committee			
Chairman of the Audit Committee	25,200	22,400	12.5%
Member of the Audit Committee	18,000	16,000	12.5%
Nomination and Remuneration Committee			
Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee	15,700	14,000	12.1%
Member of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee	11,200	10,000	12.0%

The new rate has been adjusted 12.5% from the current rate and rounded down to the nearest hundred.

2) <u>Bonus</u> - It was proposed that the bonus be paid at the rate of 1.3% of the total dividend which was paid from the operating profit of the latest fiscal year that ended (rounded up/down to the nearest 10,000 in Baht). Which is equal to Baht 430,000. The bonus distribution to each director would be at the Board of Directors' discretion.

3) Other -None-

The Chairman invited the shareholders to ask questions about the directors' remuneration. There were questions raised by the shareholders, as follows:

Mrs. Rattana Tansakul, a right protection volunteer, Thai Investors Association informed the meeting that the Company has always paid dividend pursuant to the dividend payment policy. Considering from the operating results during the period from 2015 to 2017, the Company's profit decreased from Baht 133 million in 2015 to Baht 95 million in 2016 and to Baht 66 million in 2017,

respectively. As a result, the dividend paid to shareholders has been reducing. At this meeting, the Board of Directors proposed to increase the directors' remuneration, shareholder therefore requested the Board of Directors to reconsider this matter since the Company's profit has been decreasing whereas the dividend payment remains at the same rate. If the Company's turnover is improved, the Board of Directors may consider the increase of directors' remuneration again.

Mr. Chatchawin Charoen-Rajapark thanked for the information regarding the Company's profit and explained that the existing rate of the directors' remuneration was the same rate as 2015. After re-examining the Company's profit in 2014, the Company reported the profit at the amount of Baht 47 million. The profit increased to Baht 133 million in 2015 and later decreased to Baht 66 in 2017. At the time when the Company gained more profit, the Company did not propose for increase of the directors' remuneration. And comparing between the operating results in 2017 and 2014, it appears that the profit of the Company increased by more than 40%.

Mrs. Rattana Tansakul further stated to the meeting that after comparing between the current rate of directors' remuneration and the profit in 2015, it is calculated to be equivalent to 4.1% and equivalent to 5.7% in 2016. As such, the number in 2018 after comparing with the current rate of directors' remuneration is equivalent to 8.3%, whereas after comparing with the proposed new rate of directors' remuneration the number will be equivalent to 9.3%, which is almost 1 time of the rate of directors' remuneration in 2015, while the Company's profit was decreased for approximately 1 time from those of 2015. The shareholder then requested the Board of Directors to consider and remain the directors' remuneration at the same rate.

Mr. Chatchawin Chareon-Rajapark further explained that if revolving the previous profit in 2014, it appears that the Company reported the profit of Baht 47 million and that the AGM of 2015 had approved the adjustment to the rate of directors' remuneration to be at the current rate. Accordingly, after comparing the proposed increase of directors' remuneration by 12.5% and the previous profit in 2014, it appears that the profit of the Company were increased by 40%.

There were no further question raised by the shareholders. The Chairman proposed that the meeting consider and approve directors' remuneration as presented by Mr. Chatchawin Charoen-Rajapark.

The Secretary of the Meeting further stated that Article 39(1) of the Company's AOA provided that any shareholder who had a vested interest in any matter shall not be entitled to vote on such matter, except for voting on the election of directors. Therefore, Mr. Kirati Assakul and Mr. Naputt Assakul who were directors of the Company and held 2,089,309 shares in total were not entitled to vote on this matter. The number of their votes was recorded in the system.

Resolution: The remuneration of directors, members of the Audit Committee, members of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee for the year 2018 as proposed by the Board of Directors was approved with the majority votes of not less than two-thirds of total votes of shareholders attending the meeting whereby the shareholders being the Company's directors were not entitled to vote on this matter:

During the meeting, there was 1 additional shareholder representing 100 shares attending the meeting. The total number of persons attending the meeting was 84 persons, holding altogether 12,226,556 shares, equivalent to 57.3190% of the total issued and offered shares of the Company.

-	Approved	12,219,556	votes, equivalent to	99.9427%
-	Disapproved	3,900	votes, equivalent to	0.0319%
-	Abstained	3,100	votes, equivalent to	0.0254%
-	Void Ballot	0	votes, equivalent to	0.0000%

Agenda 7 To appoint the auditors and fix the auditing fee for the year 2018

The Chairman assigned Mr. Worakan Xuto, Chairman of the Audit Committee, to report to the meeting on behalf of the Board of Directors. The meeting was informed that the Audit Committee had considered and recommended the appointment of the auditors from Dharmniti Auditing Company Limited as the Company's auditors as their professional experience and the audit fee were considered appropriate. The designated certified public accounts from Dharmniti Auditing Company Limited possessed qualifications per the Office of Securities and Exchange Commission's requirements, including adequate creditability and experiences. As the auditors had no relationship or conflicts of interest with the Company or its subsidiaries, executives, major shareholders, or related parties in a manner that would obstruct their independence, they could audit the Company's financial statements with independence. The names of the designated certified public accounts were as follows:

Miss Thanyaporn Tangthanopajai CPA. Registration No. 9169; or
 Mr. Peradate Pongsathiansak CPA. Registration No. 4752; or
 Miss Wannisa Ngambuathong CPA. Registration No. 6838.

Any of the above-named certified public accounts from Dharmniti Auditing Company Limited would serve as the Company's auditor for the year 2018. However, in case where the above-named certified public accounts were unable to perform their duties, Dharmniti Auditing Company Limited shall delegate other certified public accounts to replace them.

The Audit Committee deemed it appropriate to fix the audit fee of the Company for the fiscal year 2018 at Baht 1,100,000 in total. Such amount increased by 4.76% from the previous year and was exclusive of out-of-pocket expenses, e.g. travel expense.

In this regard, the Company's subsidiary in Thailand, namely, Crystal Clear Innovation Co., Ltd. would use the same auditing company. But for the Company's subsidiaries in abroad, namely, Ocean Glass Trading (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. which was incorporated in the Republic of China, and Ocean Glass Trading India Private Limited which was incorporated in India such companies will consider using local auditing company.

The Board of Directors concurred with the proposal of the Audit Committee and proposed that the meeting appoint the Company's auditors and fix auditing fee for the year 2018.

The Chairman invited the shareholders to ask questions about the appointment of the Company's auditors and the audit fee. There were no questions raised by the shareholders.

The Chairman proposed that the meeting appoint the Company's auditors for the year 2018 and fix the audit fee for the year 2018 as proposed.

Resolution: The appointment of the Company's auditors and the auditing fee for the year 2018 as proposed by the Board of Directors were approved with the majority votes of total votes of shareholders attending the meeting and entitled to vote as follows:

During the meeting, there were 2 additional shareholders representing 2,089,309 shares attending the meeting. The total number of persons attending the meeting was 86 persons, holding altogether 14,315,865 shares, equivalent to 67.1139% of the total issued and offered shares of the Company.

-	Approved	14,310,565	votes, equivalent to	99.9630%
-	Disapproved	2,300	votes, equivalent to	0.0161%
-	Abstained	3,100	votes, equivalent to	0.0210%
-	Void Ballot	0	votes, equivalent to	0.0000%

Agenda 8 To approve the amendment to the Company's Articles of Association, Article 33 Paragraph 2

The Chairman explained to the meeting that, pursuant to the Order of the Head of the National Council for Peace and Order No. 21/2560 regarding the Amendments of Laws to Facilitate the Ease of Doing Business which amended the Public Limited Companies Act B.E. 2535 (1992) in Chapter 7, Section 100, the Company's existing AOA in Chapter 5, Article 33 Paragraph 2 was not in line with such amendment. It was therefore appropriate to propose the meeting to consider amending the AOA of the Company to be in line with the amended law, as per the following details.

Existing Article

The meeting of shareholders other than the one referred to shall be called extraordinary meetings. The board of directors may call an extraordinary meeting of shareholders any time the board considers it expedient to do so or shareholders holding shares amounting to not less than one-fifth of the total number of shares sold or shareholders amounting to not less than twenty-five persons holding shares amounting to not less than one-tenth of the total number of shares sold may, by subscribing their names, request the board of directors to call an extraordinary meeting at any time, but the reasons for calling such meeting shall be clearly stated in such request. In this regard, the board of directors shall proceed to call a meeting of shareholders to be held within one month as from the date the request is received from the shareholders.

Proposed Amended Article

The meeting of shareholders other than the one referred to shall be called extraordinary meetings. The board of directors may call an extraordinary meeting of shareholders any time the board considers it expedient to do so. One or more shareholders holding shares amounting to not less than ten percent of the total number of shares sold may submit a written request to the Board of Directors for calling an extraordinary general meeting at any time, but the subjects and reasons for calling such meeting shall be clearly stated in such request. In this regard, the Board of Directors shall proceed to call a meeting of shareholders to be held within forty-five days as from the date of receipt of such request from the shareholders. In case the Board of Directors does not hold the meeting within the period as prescribed under paragraph two, shareholders who subscribe their names or other shareholders holding the number of shares as required may call such meeting within forty-five days from the completion of such period. In this regard, the meeting shall be considered as the shareholders' meeting called by the Board of Directors. The Company shall be responsible for necessary expenses arising from such meeting and reasonably provide facilitation. In case the quorum of the shareholders' meeting called by the shareholders as prescribed under paragraph two is not formed according to Article 36, the shareholders as prescribed under paragraph two shall be collectively responsible to the Company for expenses arising from such meeting.

The Chairman then asked the meeting to approve the said amendment to Article 33 of the AOA of the Company.

Resolution: The amendment to Article 33 of the AOA of the Company be approved with the majority votes of not less than three-fourth of the total number of votes of the shareholders who attend the meeting and entitled to votes, as follows:

-	In favor	14,311,865	votes, equivalent to	99.9721%
-	Not in favor	0	votes, equivalent to	0.0000%
-	Abstain	4,000	votes, equivalent to	0.0279%
-	Void Ballot	0	votes, equivalent to	0.0000%

No additional matter was raised for the meeting's consideration. However, the shareholders had additional questions pertaining to the business operations of the Company which can be summarized as follows.

1. <u>Mr. Worathep Charoenpornpanich</u>, a shareholder inquired:

1.1 In Quarters 1 and 2 of the previous year, the Company had many purchase orders from foreign countries. Therefore, the shareholder asked if the Company would have high purchasing volume in this year.

Ms. Jariya Sangchaiya explained that the foreign purchasing volume of the previous year was the purchasing volume of B2B customers which are different from food service customers. That is, the purchase order is not steady and changes all the time depending on promotion campaign launched over the period. Nevertheless, the Company continues to build up relationship with B2B customers by having the Company's representatives constantly taking care and contacting this group of customers.

1.2 Since the Company reported that this year, the Company expected an increase in expenses due to, for instance, machine maintenance and increase in directors' remuneration; therefore, how would the Company carry out the business and what is the tendency of the Company's profits, if it would remain unchanged or decrease.

Ms. Jariya Sangchaiya explained that in conducting the business, the Company has a plan to increase the sales volume; accordingly, there would be an increase in expenditures. What the Company could do to maintain the Company's growth and profits is to increase sales volume by searching for new markets, to increase popularity of product brands, and to look for new opportunities in some markets of which the Company can adjust the prices. However, entrepreneurs in glass industrial business are impacted by the energy costs. The competitors also look for a way to increase product prices in the market. Hence, if the competitors in the market have adjusted their product prices, the Company would also be ready to adjust the prices to achieve the target sales volume.

With respect to profits, the Company has been constantly developing manufacturing capacity in order to reduce costs and the Company has implemented the Energy Saving Project since 2016. In 2017, the Company adjusted lighting system by changing type of light bulbs from Metal Heli High Bay to LED High Bay. In addition, the Company planned to rectify an energy consumption of manufacturing machines. In this regard, this demonstrated that the Company highly focuses on energy saving so as to be prepared for an increase in energy costs. These plans would bring longevity of profits making and mitigate impact from energy costs.

For efficiency in the expenditure management, such as expenditure related to product exhibition, the Company will consider how participating in a particular exhibition would create opportunity in increasing sales volume and of is it worth the investment. Accordingly, the Company always takes into account of potential opportunity to carry out business and to make sustainability profitable.

1.3 Currently, many listed companies tend to split the par value of shares in order to increase more liquidity in the sale and purchase of assets. The par value of Company's shares is at Baht 10. Therefore, does the Company have any plan to split the par value of shares to increase liquidity?

Ms. Jariya Sangchaiya responded that at present, the Company does not have such policy.

2. <u>Mr. Sutham Teerawattanachai</u>, a shareholder inquired:

2.1 For a group of customers that aims to launch their promotion, for instance, a bank requiring its logo printed on the product, is this considered B2B customer?

Ms. Jariya Sangchaiya answered that the shareholder's understanding is correct.

Mr. Kirati Assakul additionally explained that as for the B2B, the customers need their logos printed on the products for giveaway. This group of customers thus request for special discount. In considering such request, the Company would consider if the Company has excess capacity or not. If the Company has high excess capacity, the Company will rather continue the manufacturing line than stop the manufacturing. In this respect, some of B2B purchase orders brings about good profits while some B2B purchase orders are only necessary for maintaining the manufacturing capacity without having to maintain high inventory.

In order to make profits in a certain period of time, for instance, in 2017, the Company had many purchase orders from foreign countries which resulted in better overall performance of export than in 2016. The Company has exported products to many countries in the world to diversify risks which may occur when the Company has low sales volumes in some countries whereas those in some other countries grow. As such, the proportion of export to each country should not exceed 25% of the foreign sales volume. The Company has had different number of domestic and international sales volumes in each year; in some year, international sales volumes were higher.

In addition, a glass is a product of festival and party by which the Company has a slogan 'Life's Pleasure.' to promote the customers to enjoy drinking and eating. Nonetheless, the festive atmosphere reduced in 2017 when Thailand was in mourning period. In any case, the Company expects that in 2018, the situation will get better and move forward. The Company aims to increase the sales volume to more than Baht 2,000 Million because the Company still has manufacturing capacity. And the Company targets at the crystal glass as the market has given well recognition. The Company will maintain the quality standard, create product brand and maintain customers, as well as to control costs in accordance with the management's policies.

2.2 Dose the Company have a plan to maintain Furnace A?

Ms. Jariya Sangchaiya explained that the Company has a plan to maintain Furnace A in the 3rd quarter when the sales volume is less than other period. The Company also plans to manufacture inventory products before reparation of Furnace A so that there will be sufficient of products for sale. The reparation process approximately takes 40-50 days.

2.3 There are two expenditures incurred from furnace reparation, i.e. maintenance costs and shutdown expenses. Hence, do the maintenance costs of Baht 130 Million

include shutdown expenses? If not, what are the total costs? Will the employees in manufacturing line be affected?

Ms. Jariya Sangchaiya explained that the amount incurred from manufacturing line shut down may impact on accountings but it will not impact on the sales volume because the Company has other machines and product management plans.

Mr. Kirati Assakul further explained that the frequency of manufacturing line shutdown in each year is essential. At present, when the Company has remaining manufacturing capacity, the shutdown expenses will be the last to eliminate. It might seem the shutdown is required because the machines are out of order. However, in fact, it is because there are excess capacity. Therefore, this number is the number that impacts on the business performance.

The shutdown for machine maintenances is usual and due every 5-6 years. If the Company does not have excess capacity, the shutdown will cause expenses to the Company without returns for absorption. In contrast, if the Company has excess capacity, the Company will have expenses with absorption. Thus, the shutdown does not significantly create overall impact. That is, when the Company has high inventory amount and the Company should shut down the manufacturing lines, there will be shutdown expenses incurred. However, such shut down will not significantly impact the Company because the Company has to shut down for machine maintenances in any way. Therefore, the shutdown of manufacturing line is also for inventory management. For employees in manufacturing lines, they will be assigned to other works. The employees will not be laid off.

Mr. Sathien Srisaikham added that the shutdown of 2018 will be similar to 2017. The number will not be much different. And the Company has planned to allocate employees to work in other stations.

Ms. Jariya Sangchaiya also added that the shutdown is a part of Company's business plan. In production, the shutdown which has specified period will be recorded as shutdown. However, the value of machines and the numeral amount of impact of shutdown cannot be exactly identified, except it is a big plan. For instance, for the maintenance of Furnace A, the estimated expenses are included in the budget plan. According to the Company's financial statements, it appears that the Company has reported the amount of shutdown expenses for each year.

3. Mr. Waiwit Poonjiradechma, a shareholder inquired:

3.1 What are marketing plans for foreign markets, e.g. in Asia, Europe, China and India?

Ms. Jariya Sangchaiya informed that the Company focuses on recognition of product brands in main markets, namely, Thailand, China, India and Vietnam. For crystal glass products, the Company still focuses on the main markets. In 2017, the Company launched marketing activities in China, and New Delhi City, India. For this year, the Company will continue the marketing activities but will change to other cities in order to spread the product brand recognition. If the Company launches marketing activities in many countries, the Company would need more budget. Hence, the Company focuses on main cities with high potential.

The Chairman thanked the shareholders for attending the meeting and giving valuable comments to the Company.

The Secretary of the Meeting asked for cooperation from the shareholders in completing	ng the survey in
connection with this meeting for the Company's improvement in the next meetings.	The Chairman
declared the Meeting was closed.	

The meeting was closed at 4.00 p.m.

Signed _	Signature (Mr. Chakri Chanruangvanich)	_ Chairman of the Meeting
Signed _	Signature (Mrs. Rakdee Pakdeechumpol.)	Secretary of the Meeting and Minutes Taker